

**LIONS CLUBS INTERNATIONAL  
DISTRICT 37C CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS  
(effective November 12, 1994)**

**ARTICLE I**

**NAME**

**SECTION 1.** This organization shall be known as District 37C of the International Association of Lions Clubs, hereinafter referred to as " Lions Clubs International.

**ARTICLE II**

**OBJECTS**

**SECTION 1.** To provide as administrative structure with which to advance the purpose and objects of Lions Clubs International in the District.

**ARTICLE III**

**MEMBERSHIP**

**SECTION 1.** The members of this organization shall be all the Lions Clubs in the District chartered by Lions Clubs International.

**SECTION 2.** District Boundaries

This district shall include the northcentral parts of the State of Montana and the south east part of the Province of Alberta as shown in Multiple District 37 records, as amended from time to time, and such Lions Clubs as may in the future be chartered within this territory , or added to or deleted from this list in accordance with the Constitution of Multiple District 37 and Lions Club International.

**ARTICLE IV**

**DISTRICT ORGANIZATION**

**SECTION 1. CABINET OFFICERS AND ELECTIONS**

- a) Each Cabinet Officer shall be a member in good standing of a Lions Club in good standing in the District. **The qualification for Vice District Governor and District Governor shall be that the said member shall have by the time he/she takes office as Vice District Governor have served as:**

- i) President of a Lions Club for a full term or major portion thereof and a member of the Board of Directors;
- ii) secured the endorsement of his/her Club or a majority of the Clubs in District 37C, and
- iii) as Zone Chairman or Region Chairman or Cabinet Secretary and/or Treasurer for a full term or major portion thereof, and
- iv) shall have completed at least one term as Chairman of one or more of the following Cabinet positions namely:

District Convention, Diabetes Awareness, Youth Outreach/Quest, Environment, Extension, Hearing and Speech Action and Work with the Deaf, Journey for Sight, Sightfirst, Honorary, Leadership, International Understanding & Co-operation, Leo Club, Lions Club International Foundation, Lions Information & Public Relations, Youth Exchange, Leader Dog, Bulletin Editor, Constitution and By-Laws or

- v) shall have completed at least one term as Chairman or member of the following Multiple District or National or International Offices, namely, Lions of Alberta Foundation, Lions Foundation of Canada and Canine Vision, Lions Eye Bank of Alberta, Montana Lions Sight and Hearing Foundation or USA/Canada Leadership Forum.
- vi) with none of the above being accomplished concurrently.

November 1995

- b) The District shall have a District Cabinet composed of the District Governor, the Immediate Past District Governor, **Vice District Governor**, a Zone Chairman for each Zone and a Cabinet Secretary, Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer. The members of the District Cabinet shall be the officers of the District.

November 1995

- c) The District Governor and the Vice District Governor shall be elected at the Annual Convention of the District for the following Lionistic year.
- d) The Lion so elected shall be known as the District Governor Elect/Vice District Governor Elect until such time as he/she takes office at or following the subsequent International Convention or in case no convention is held then on July 1<sup>st</sup> next.

- e) One Regional Chairman for each Region **should the District Governor, or District Governor Elect determine to have a Regional Chairman as part of his/her Cabinet** and one Zone Chairman for each Zone may be elected at the Annual Convention for the following Lionistic Year by the delegates from the Lions Clubs in that Region or Zone as the case maybe and shall unless disqualified, serve until the end of the following Lionistic year.

November 1995

- f) The District Governor Elect shall appoint by the time he takes office as District Governor, the Cabinet Secretary, Treasurer, or Secretary/Treasurer, as he/she so chooses, and one Region Chairman for each Region if the position is to be filled during the District Governor's year and one Zone Chairman for each Zone unless such Region Chairman or Zone Chairman has been previously elected at the Annual Convention of the District in accordance with paragraph (e), above.

- g) The District Governor may constitute such committees as he/she seems necessary to advance the purpose of Lions Clubs International in the District, and appoint Chairman to supervise the functioning of such committees. Each Chairman shall be member of the District Governor's Cabinet, and may be granted voting privileges for any specific cabinet meeting or for all cabinet meetings at a regular meeting of the Cabinet on a motion and passed by the Officers of the Cabinet each year.

- h) **Any vacancy in any District Office, except that of the District Governor, shall be filled by appointment by the District Governor for the unexpired term thereof;**

November 1995

- i) **In the event a vacancy occurs in the office of District Governor under Article IV of this constitution, the Vice District Governor shall act as District Governor and shall perform the duties of, and have the same authority as the District Governor until such time as said vacancy is filled by the International Board of Directors for the remainder of the term.**

November 1995

- j) If any Region Chairman or Zone Chairman, shall cease to be a member of a Club in the Region or Zone, as the case may be , he/she shall fail to remain in good standing in his or her club, his/her term of office shall thereupon cease and the District Governor shall appoint a successor to fill said office;

- k) No salary shall be paid to any officer of the District.

## **SECTION 2. DISTRICT CABINET MEETINGS**

### Attendance, Quorum and Procedure

- a) Members of the Cabinet entitled to attend regular or special meetings, whether attendance in person or by teleconference call, shall include the District Governor and those officers appointed by the District Governor or elected to his or her office. Attendance at the four (4) regular meetings will also include each Chairman with or without voting privileges and each shall be entitled to be heard;
- b) **QUORUM:** The attendance of a majority of voting members of the Cabinet in person or by teleconference call shall constitute a quorum for any meeting thereof;
- c) **PRESIDING:** The presiding officer at all Cabinet meetings shall be the District Governor. He/She shall be entitled to one vote at all meetings. In the absence of the District Governor, the presiding officer shall be the Vice District Governor who shall be entitled to one vote;
- d) **REGULAR:** A regular meeting of the Cabinet shall be held each quarter of the fiscal year, with the first to be held within sixty (60) days after the adjournment of the preceding International Convention or in the event that no International Convention has been held, then and in that case, before the first day of September of the Lionistic year. Not less than five (5) days, nor more than ten (10) days written notice, be prepaid post, facsimile or electronic means of meeting setting forth a date, time, and place determined by the District Governor shall be given to each voting member by the Cabinet Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer;
- e) **SPECIAL:** Special meetings of the Cabinet may be called by the District Governor at his/her discretion, and shall be called upon written request made to the District Governor or the Cabinet Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer by a majority of the members of the Cabinet. Not fewer than five (5) days, nor more than ten (10) days written, facsimile or electronic notice of each special meeting, setting forth the purpose thereof and a date, time and place determined by the District Governor, shall be given to each member by the Cabinet Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer;
- f) Notwithstanding Paragraph (e), the District Governor may conduct a Cabinet Meeting by means of a teleconference call to Officers of the District.

## **SECTION 3. Regions and Zones**

- a) The District Governor shall divide the District into Regions and Zones, giving due respect to geographical location of the Clubs and previous club membership in each zone. All such Regions and Zones shall be subject to change by the District Governor when, in his/her sole discretion he/she shall deem the same necessary or advisable in the best interests of Lions Clubs International;

- b) REGION MEETINGS: Meetings of representatives of all clubs in a region, with the Region Chairman presiding, may be held during the fiscal year at such times and places are fixed by the Region Chairman of his or her Region.
- c) ZONE MEETINGS: (District Advisory Committee Meetings) Meetings of representatives of all Clubs in a Zone, with the Zone Chairman presiding, shall be held during the fiscal year at such times and places as are fixed by the Zone Chairman of his or her Zone.

#### **SECTION 4. DISTRICT COMMITTEES**

- a) DISTRICT GOVERNOR'S ADVISORY COMMITTEE: In each Zone, the Zone Chairman and Presidents and Secretaries of the Clubs in the Zone shall comprise of a District Governor's Advisory Committee, with the Zone Chairman as Chairman thereof. At a date, time and placed called by the Zone Chairman, this Committee shall hold its first meeting within ninety (90) days after the adjournment of the preceding International Convention or in the event that no International Convention has been held, then and in that case, before the first day of October of the Lionistic year, a second meeting in the month of November; a third meeting in the month of February or March; and a fourth meeting, if deemed by the Zone Chairman to be advisable, prior to the end of the Lionistic year;
- b) DISTRICT GOVERNOR'S HONORARY COMMITTEE: The District Governor may appoint a District Governor's Honorary Committee of Past International Officers who are members in good standing of Clubs which are in good standing within the District. This Committee shall meet when and as called upon by the District Governor.

### **ARTICLE V**

#### **DISTRICT ADMINISTRATIVE FUND**

##### **SECTION 1.**

- a) To provide revenue to defray the non-Convention administrative expenses of the District that portion of the annual dues levied by the Council of Governors of Multiple District 37 of Lions Clubs International, pursuant to the Constitution and By-Laws of Multiple District 37, and which are returned to the District, as well as any surplus funds transferred from the District Convention Fund, shall be used as the basis for the District Budget.
- b) Commencing with the 2<sup>nd</sup> day of **July 1998** and continuing annually thereafter, an Annual Membership **fee of FIVE (\$5.00)** Dollars U.S. per capita based on the most recent membership report shall be levied on each club member for the District Administration Fund.

- c) The annual membership fee shall be collected by Multiple District 37 and remitted to the District.

**SECTION 2.**

Such funds shall be disbursed only for non-Convention administrative expenses of the District and only upon approval by the District Governor and his/her Cabinet. Disbursements therefrom shall be by cheques drawn and signed by the Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer, provided he or she is available and capacitated, and countersigned by the District Governor provided that he or she is available and capacitated, or in the event of the unavailability or incapacity of either, by an alternate Cabinet Officer selected by the simple majority of the voting members of the District Cabinet duly assembled.

**SECTION 3.**

Expenses of the District Governor in connection with his/her attending the International Convention shall not be considered a District administrative expense. Such expenses shall be considered as a Multiple District 37 administrative expense.

**SECTION 4.**

The District Governor and his/her Cabinet shall not incur obligations in fiscal year which will result in an unbalanced budget or deficit in such fiscal year.

**SECTION 5.**

The Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer and the alternate cheque signing officer referred to in Section 2 of this Article V may be bonded in such amount and with such Surety Company as shall be approved by the District Governor and the cost of same shall be a District administrative expense.

**SECTION 6.**

No assessments or levies may be imposed upon any Lion or Lions Club by the District Governor or his/her Cabinet, except upon 2/3 majority affirmative vote of delegates assembled in Convention.

**SECTION 7.**

The District Governor shall provide for an annual or more frequent audit of the books and accounts of the Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer, and a statement of the financial condition of the District shall be sent to Lions Clubs International and each Club in the District within sixty (60) days

after the close of the fiscal year by the District Governor then in office.

## ARTICLE VI

### DISTRICT CONVENTION

#### SECTION 1.

An annual convention of the District shall be held in each fiscal year **on the first week-end of November** at a place selected by a previous annual convention of the District or at a date and time fixed by the District Governor in the event that no bids are received, bids are withdrawn, the accepted host(s) in the opinion of the District Governor refuses or neglects to follow established procedure or are not properly prepared or the site is no longer available.

November 1995

#### SECTION 2.

The District Governor shall receive bids in writing from Lions Clubs in the District desiring to entertain a future annual convention. All invitations shall set forth such information as the District Governor shall from time to time require and shall be delivered to him/her not later than thirty (30) days prior to the convening date of the convention at which the bid is to be voted upon. The procedure to be followed in the investigation of bids and in the presentation of the same to Conventions, as well as action to be taken by the District Governor, shall be determined by the District Governor.

#### SECTION 3.

The members of the District Cabinet shall be the officers of the annual District Convention.

#### SECTION 4.

The District Governor alone or in committee, or the District Cabinet at the option of the District Governor, shall establish a set of ground rules of procedure, acceptable methods of record keeping, receipt of registration fees, and the like, well in advance of each convention.

#### SECTION 5.

A Convention Sergeant-at-Arms and Assistant Sergeant-at-Arms shall be appointed by the District Governor.

#### SECTION 6.

- a) Each chartered Club in good standing in Lions Clubs International and the District shall be entitled to be represented by one or more delegates at the annual District Convention and shall be entitled in each such Convention to one voting delegate and one alternative for each ten (10) members or major fraction thereof, of such Club as shown by records of the International Office on the first day of the month last preceding that month during which the Convention is held. The major fraction referred to in this section shall be five (5) or more members. Each certified delegate present in person may cast one vote only each office to be filled by, and one vote only on each issue to be voted on by the members of said Convention. Unless otherwise specified therein, the affirmative vote of a majority of the delegates voting on any question shall be the act of the Convention. The District Governor and any Past District Governor of this District shall be considered voting delegates over and above his or her Club's quota for all purposes.
- b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph (a) hereof, delegates voting for Region or Zone Chairman shall only vote for such Chairman for their respective region and/or Zone.

**SECTION 7.**

The attendance in person of majority of the delegates registered at a Convention shall constitute a quorum at each session of the Convention.

**SECTION 8.**

The District Governor shall retain and have power to change at any time, for good reason, including the reasons set out in Article VI Section 1, the Convention site chosen by a previous District Convention, and neither the District Governor nor the District, nor any member of the District Cabinet, shall incur any liability thereby to any Club or Club member in the District.

**SECTION 9.**

Within thirty (30) days after the close of the Convention an official report of the Convention proceedings shall be mailed to Lions Clubs International and the Secretary-Treasurer of Multiple District 37.

**ARTICLE VII**

**DISTRICT CONVENTION FUND**

**SECTION 1.**

- a) The account records of the District shall include and identify a fund to be known as the District Convention Fund and a further fund to be known as The District Convention Surplus Fund;

- b) The District Governor Fund shall consist of monies received from the Multiple District 37 and earmarked for the fund;
- c) The District Convention Surplus Fund shall consist of any and all unexpended portions of the District Convention Fund which shall not have been disbursed during the District Governor's fiscal year, as well as any surplus funds received from the Host Club or Clubs of a District Convention;
- c) (i) In the event that as of the 2<sup>nd</sup> day of January of each year commencing with the 2<sup>nd</sup> day of January 1995, the District Convention Fund shall exceed \$1000 US, the excess over \$1,000.00 US shall be permanently transferred from the District Convention Fund to the District Administrative Fund;
- d) Monies of the District Convention Fund and the District Convention Surplus Fund may for banking purposes, be segregated from or combined with the District Administrative Fund;
- e) The District Cabinet may advance to the Host Club of a District Convention by way of a loan or a grant from the District Convention and/or the District Convention Surplus Fund, such amounts as the Cabinet shall consider to be advisable for the promotion or subsidization of the District Convention, as the case may be;
- f) Unless the District Cabinet shall approve the budget of the Host Club or Clubs of a District Convention and shall agree to subsidize the same, each District Convention shall be budgeted to be self-supporting;
- g) Unless the District Cabinet shall consent to the Host Club or Clubs of a District Convention retaining the profit from a District Convention or any part thereof, all surplus funds resulting from a District Convention shall be paid to the District Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer promptly following the convention.

## **SECTION 2.**

District Convention Administrative expenses shall be paid only by District cheques drawn and signed by the Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer, provided he or she is available and capacitated and countersigned by the District Governor, provided that he or she is available and capacitated, or in the event of the unavailability or incapacity of either, by an alternate Cabinet Officer selected by the simple majority of the voting member of the District Cabinet duly assembled.

## **SECTION 3.**

Such fee as the District Governor shall set, shall be collected under procedures set by the District Governor, from each delegate, alternative delegate and guest attending the District Convention to defray the actual cost of the Convention, meals and entertainment.

#### **SECTION 4.**

A Host Club or Clubs of a District Convention shall submit for approval by the Cabinet a budget for its convention. Upon approval of such budget, the Cabinet may allow such amount as it deems desirable to offset administrative expenses of the Convention. In the event that the Host Club or Clubs does not present a budget for approval or incurs expenses that were not approved by the Cabinet, part or all of the deficit resulting from such convention shall be considered club administrative expenses and shall not be the responsibility of the District Cabinet unless the Cabinet in its sole discretion shall otherwise decide.

#### **SECTION 5.**

A Host Club or Clubs shall provide the District Governor with a complete accounting of expenditures, receipts, billings, invoices and other documents, together with a complete financial statement covering all aspects of the District Convention within thirty (30) days following the close of the District Convention.

#### **SECTION 6.**

In event of a deficit, the District Cabinet may after reviewing statements provided in accordance with the immediately preceding Section, reimburse all or part of the deficit, to the host Club of Clubs.

#### **SECTION 7.**

A Club or Clubs acting as host or hosts for a District Convention shall not use the operation of such Convention as a Club fund raising project.

#### **SECTION 8.**

No Lions Club or individual shall sell, provide, circulate, or otherwise distribute raffle tickets, draw entries, activities or any merchandise whatsoever at a District Convention without first having obtained the express written authority of the District Governor.

#### **SECTION 9.**

In any fiscal year, any balance remaining after payment of District Convention Administrative expenses shall be remitted to the Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer, who shall deposit said balance in a special account in a Bank or other depository chosen by the District Governor. Funds accumulating in this Convention Surplus Account may be used to defray administrative expenses of subsequent District Conventions under procedures set by the District Governor in office.

### **ARTICLE VIII**

## **AMENDMENTS**

### **SECTION 1.**

This Constitution may be amended only at a District Convention by resolution reported by the Convention Committee on Constitution and By-Laws and adopted by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast.

### **SECTION 2.**

No amendments shall be so reported or voted upon unless the same shall have been furnished to each Club not less than thirty (30) days prior to the convening date of the annual Convention with notice that the same will be voted upon at said Convention.

### **SECTION 3.**

Each amendment shall take effect at the close of the Convention at which the amendment was adopted unless otherwise specified in the amendment.

## **BY-LAWS**

### **ARTICLE I**

#### **DISTRICT NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS**

### **SECTION 1.**

Each District Governor shall appoint a Nominating Committee of not more than five (5) members, each of whom shall be members in good standing of different Lions Clubs which are in good standing in the District and such members shall not at the time of their appointment hold any District or International Office. In addition to the above, a Chairman is to be appointed and the Clubs notified of the Chairman appointed and Clubs in good standing may then submit nominations to such Chairman or District Governors for the consideration of the Nomination Committee.

### **SECTION 2.**

Any member of a Club in the District seeking the office of District Governor or Vice District Governor shall file his/her intention to so run in writing with the Nomination Committee prior to the day of its report to the Convention and furnish therewith evidence of his/her compliance with the qualification of said office set out in the International Constitution and By-Laws. The Nominating Committee shall place in nomination at the District Convention the names of all candidates so qualified. If none are received and or so qualified, then , but then only, nominations for the office may be made from the floor. Each candidate shall be allowed one nominating speech of no more than five (5) minutes duration, and one seconding speech of no more than three (3) minutes duration.

### **SECTION 3.**

The election shall be by secret written ballot, unless there shall be only one nominee, in which event a voice vote may be taken. The candidate receiving the largest number of votes cast shall be declared elected. In case of a tie on any ballots, balloting shall continue on the tied candidates until one is elected.

### **SECTION 4.**

The Cabinet Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer shall notify in writing, the Multiple District Secretary-Treasurer of the intent of the District to hold a Convention to elect a District Governor and a Vice District Governor at least sixty (60) days prior to the commencement of the Multiple District Convention to be held during the same fiscal year.

### **SECTION 5.**

The Cabinet Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer shall notify in writing the Multiple District Election Committee, of the names of the District Governor-Elect and the Vice District Governor at least thirty (30) days prior to the commencement of the Multiple District Convention.

## **ARTICLE II**

### **DUTIES**

#### **SECTION 1.**

**DISTRICT GOVERNOR:** The District Governor shall act under the general supervision of the International Board of Directors as the representative of Lions Club International in this District and shall have general supervision over all Lions Clubs therein. In addition, he/she shall:

- a) Further the purposes and objectives of Lions Clubs International;
- b) Supervise organization of new Lions Clubs;
- c) Promote cordial relations among the Chartered Lions Clubs;
- d) Preside over all Cabinet, Convention and other District meetings;
- e) Endeavour to visit each Club at least once during his/her term of office;
- f) Establish such Cabinet Committees as shall in his/her opinion further the purposes and objectives of or shall be required by Lions Club International in the District and appoint and for good cause remove from office, a Chairman for each committee;
- g) Exercise such supervision and authority over Cabinet officers and District Committee appointees as is provided in this Constitution, including, but not by way of limitation, the following:
  - i) designate a depository for all District funds and authorize the payment therefrom of all legitimate expenses pertaining to the administration of the affairs of the District;
  - ii) secure, set the amount of and approve the Surety Company issuing the

- surety bond for the Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer, in the event that he or she is to be bonded;
- iii) secure, semi-annual or more frequently, District financial reports from the Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer;
- iv) provide for an annual or more frequent audit of the books and accounts of the Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer and set up a definite schedule of dates, time and places of Cabinet meetings to be held during the fiscal year;
- h) Submit a current itemized statement of total District receipts and expenditures to the annual District Convention.
- i) Submit such other reports and perform such other duties as may be required by the International Board of Directors;
- j) Deliver, forthwith, at the termination of his/her term of office, all District accounts, funds and records to his or her successor in office.

## **SECTION 2.**

**VICE DISTRICT GOVERNOR:** The Vice District Governor, subject to the supervision and direction of the District Governor, shall be Chief Administrative Assistant to the District Governor. His or her specific responsibilities shall be to:

- a) Further the purpose and objects of the Lions Club International;
- b) Familiarize himself/herself with the duties of the District Governor so in the event of a vacancy in the office of District Governor he or she will be better prepared to assume the duties and responsibility of the office;
- c) Perform such administrative duties as may be assigned to him or her by the District Governor and the District Cabinet;
- d) Perform such other functions and acts as may be required of him or her by the International Board of Directors through the Vice District Governor's manual and other directives.

## **SECTION 3.**

**CABINET SECRETARY OR SECRETARY-TREASURER.** Under the supervision and direction of the District Governor, the Cabinet Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer shall:

- a) Keep an accurate record of the proceedings of all meetings of the Cabinet, and within five (5) days after each meeting, forward copies of the same to all members of the Cabinet, the Multiple District Secretary-Treasurer, and the office of Lions Clubs International;
- b) Take and keep minutes of the District Convention and furnish copies of the same to Lions Clubs International, the Multiple District Secretary-Treasurer, the District Governor, and the Secretary of each Club in the District;
- c) Assist the District Governor and the Cabinet in conducting the business of the District and perform such other duties as are specified or implied in this Constitution and By-Laws, or as may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the District Governor or the Cabinet;

- d) Sign all notices and documents issued by the Cabinet;
- e) Make an annual report to the Cabinet at its meeting immediately preceding or held in conjunction with its District Convention, and such other reports at such other times as the District Governor or Cabinet may require.

**SECTION 4.**

**CABINET TREASURER OR SECRETARY-TREASURER:** Under the supervision and direction of the District Governor, the Cabinet Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer shall;

- a) Collect and receipt all funds due to the District, deposit the same in such Bank or Banks as the District Governor shall determine and disburse the same by order of the District Governor;
- b) Keep accurate books and records of account and permit inspection of the same by the District Governor, any Cabinet meeting and any Club ( or any authorized agent of any of them) at any reasonable time for any proper purpose. Upon direction of the District Governor or the Cabinet, he/she shall furnish any such books and records as request to any auditor appointed by the District Governor;
- c) Secure a bond for the faithful performance of his/her duties in such sum and with such surety as may be required by the District Governor;

**SECTION 5.**

**REGION CHAIRMAN.** The Region Chairman subject to the supervision and direction of the District Governor, shall be the Chief Administrative Officer in his/her region. His/her specific responsibilities shall be to:

- a) Further the purposes and objects of this Association;
- b) Supervise the activities of the Zone Chairman in his/her region and such District Committee Chairman as may be assigned to him/her by the District Governor;
- c) Play an active role in organizing new Clubs and in strengthening weak Clubs;
- d) Visit a regular meeting of each Club in his/her region at least once during his/her term of office, reporting his/her findings to the District Governor.
- e) Visit a regular Board of Directors Meeting of each Club in his/her Region at least once during his/her term of office, reporting his/her findings to the District Governor;
- f) Endeavour to have every Club in his/her Region operating under a duly adopted Club Constitution and By-Laws;
- g) Promote representation at International and District Conventions by at least the full quote of delegates to which each Club in his/her Region are entitled to;
- h) Carry out such official visitations to Club meetings and charter nights as shall be assigned to him/her by the District Governor;
- i) Perform such other functions and acts as may be required of him/her by the International Board of Directors through the Region Chairman's Manual and other directives.

In the event the Region Chairman for any reason cannot or does not, in the judgement of the District Governor, perform the duties of his/her office, or in the event the office is for any reason vacated, the District Governor shall appoint a successor to serve for the unexpired term.

**SECTION 6.**

**ZONE CHAIRMAN:** The Zone Chairman, subject to the supervision and direction of the District Governor and/or Region Chairman, shall be the Chief Administrative Office in his/her zone. His/her specific responsibilities shall be to:

- a) Further the purposes and objects of this Association;
- b) Serve as Chairman of the District Governor's Advisory Committee in his/her Zone and as Chairman to call regular meetings of said committee;
- c) Make a report of each District Governor's Advisory Committee meeting and send copies within five (5) days thereafter to Lions Clubs International and to the District Governor and Region Chairman;
- d) Play an active role in organizing new Clubs and keep informed on the activities and well-being of all Clubs in his/her Zone;
- e) Represent each Club in his/her Zone in any problem with District, Multiple District or Lions Clubs International;
- f) Supervise the progress of District, Multiple District and Lions Clubs International in his/her Zone;
- g) Endeavour to have every Club within his/her Zone operating under a duly adopted Club Constitution and By-Laws;
- h) Promote representation at International and District Conventions by at least the full quota of delegates to which Clubs in his/her Zone are entitled;
- i) Visit a regular meeting of each Club in his/her Zone once or more during his/her term of office, reporting his/her findings to the Region Chairman and District Governor particularly with respect to weakness he/she may have discovered;
- j) Perform such other functions and acts as may be required of him/her by the International Board of Directors through the Zone Chairman's Manual and other directives;

In the event the Zone Chairman for any reason, cannot or does not, in the judgement of the District Governor, perform the duties of his/her office or in the event the office is for any reason vacated, the District Governor shall appoint a successor to server for the unexpired term.

## **SECTION 7.**

**DISTRICT GOVERNOR'S CABINET:** The District Governor's Cabinet shall:

- a) Assist the District Governor in the performance of his/her duties and in the formation of administrative plans and policies affecting the welfare of Lionism within the District;
- b) Serve in an advisory and administrative capacity only;
- c) Receive from the Region and Zone Chairman, reports and recommendations which concern the Clubs and Zones.

## **SECTION 8**

**DISTRICT GOVERNOR'S ADVISORY COMMITTEE:**

Under the direction of the District Governor, shall assist the Zone Chairman in an advisory capacity; procure recommendations affecting the welfare of Lionism and the Clubs in the Zone, and relay the same through the Zone Chairman to the District Governor and his/her Cabinet.

**SECTION 9**

**DISTRICT GOVERNOR'S HONORARY COMMITTEE:**

It shall act under the direction of the District Governor in the promotion of harmony throughout the District. The Chairman of this Committee shall attend meetings of the Cabinet when requested by the District Governor.

**SECTION 10**

**SERGEANT-AT-ARMS:**

The Sergeants-At-Arms shall maintain order and decorum at the respective Conventions and meetings and perform such other duties as are incident to his/her office under Robert's Rules of Order newly revised.

**ARTICLE III**

**COMMITTEE**

**SECTION 1.**

The Credentials Committee of the District Convention shall be composed of the District Governor, as Chairman, the Cabinet Secretary-Treasurer and two (2) other non-officers of the District appointed by the District Governor. The Credentials Committee shall have the powers and perform its duties according to Rules set forth in Robert's Rules of Order newly revised.

**SECTION 2.**

The Sight First Committee under the direction of the District Governor shall be responsible for the implementing in the District the program of fund raising and application of funds for Sight First set from time to time by Lions Clubs International.

**SECTION 3.**

Each Region shall have at least one representative on each Committee established by the District Governor. These committees shall perform such duties as the District Governor shall designate.

#### **ARTICLE IV**

### **DISTRICT PROJECT**

#### **SECTION 1.**

The Cabinet Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer shall notify in writing, all Clubs affected by a proposed project involving participation by more than two (2) Clubs. Such notification shall contain the purpose of the proposed project, the anticipated results, and all available details. The notification shall be forwarded to all Clubs affected at least thirty (30) days prior to a meeting to be convened to discuss the merits of the proposal. No proposal shall proceed unless it receives District approval.

#### **ARTICLE V**

### **RULES FOR CONVENTION PROCEDURE**

#### **SECTION 1**

The District Governor shall arrange the order of business for the District Convention, and the same shall be the order of the day for all sessions.

#### **SECTION 2**

Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Constitution and By-Laws, or in the rules of Procedure adopted for a meeting, all questions or order and procedure in any District Cabinet, a Region, Zone or member Club or of any group or committee of any one of them shall be determined by Robert's Rules of Order newly revised.

#### **ARTICLE VI**

### **NOMINATION AND ENDORSEMENT**

### **INTERNATIONAL DIRECTOR AND VICE PRESIDENT**

#### **NOMINEE**

#### **SECTION 1.**

Subject to the provision of the International Constitution & By-Laws, and the Constitution and By-Laws of Multiple District 37, any member of a Lions Club in the District seeking endorsement of a District Convention as a candidate for the office of International Director or Vice President shall:

- a) Deliver (by mail, or in person) written notice of intention to seek such endorsement to the District Governor and, if this District is a sub-District of a Multiple District, to the Multiple District Council Secretary-Treasurer, no less than ninety (90) days prior to the convening date of the respective Convention at which such question of endorsement is to be voted upon;
- b) Deliver with said notice of intention, evidence of fulfillment of the qualifications for such office set forth in the International Constitution and By-Laws.

## **SECTION 2.**

Each notice of intention so delivered shall be transmitted forthwith by the District Governor to the Nominating Committee of the respective Convention, which shall review and perfect the same by obtaining from each prospective candidate any additional evidence of such intention and qualifications as may be necessary under the International Constitution and By-Laws, and shall place in nomination at the respective Convention, the name of each such prospective candidate who has fulfilled said procedural Constitutional requirements.

## **SECTION 3.**

Each such nominee for endorsement shall be entitled to one seconding speech of no more than three (3) minutes duration.

## **SECTION 4.**

The vote on the question of endorsement shall be by secret written ballot, unless there shall be only one nominee seeking the same, in which event a voice vote may be taken. The nominee receiving a majority of the votes cast, shall be declared endorsed (elected) as the candidate of the Convention District. In the event of a tie vote, or failure of one nominee to receive the required majority on any ballot, balloting shall continue with respect to the two (2) nominees only who received the largest number of votes on the previous ballot, until one receives the required majority of the votes cast.

## **SECTION 5.**

Certification of endorsement by the respective Convention shall be made in writing to the International Office and to the Multiple District office by the District officials designated, and in accordance with the requirement therefore set forth in the International Constitution and By-Laws and the Constitution and By-Laws of the Multiple District 37.

**SECTION 6.**

No endorsement of candidacy of any member of a Lions Club in this District shall be valid unless and until the provisions of this Article VI have been met.

**ARTICLE VII**

**FISCAL YEAR**

**SECTION 1.**

The fiscal year of this District shall be from July 1<sup>st</sup> to June 30<sup>th</sup>.

**ARTICLE VIII**

**AMENDMENTS**

**SECTION 1.**

These By-Laws may be amended only at a District Convention, by resolution reported by the Convention Committee on Constitution and By-Laws and adopted by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the votes cast.

**SECTION 2.**

No amendments shall be reported or voted upon unless the same shall have been furnished in writing to each Club no less than thirty (30) days prior to the convening date of the annual Convention with notice that the same shall be voted at said Convention.

**SECTION 3.**

Each amendment shall take effect at the close of the Convention at which adopted unless otherwise specified in the Amendment.

**ARTICLE IX**

This Constitution and By-Laws shall take effect at the close of the District Convention at which the same is adopted by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast.